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ECap Securities and Investments Limited
(Formerly known as ECap Equities Limited)

Balance Sheet 

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)
As at As at

Note  31 March 2025  31 March 2024
ASSETS
Non current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 7         0.06                                -                                 
Financial assets

Investments 8         -                                  9,620.88                       
Current tax assets (net) 9         59.38                              12.80                             

59.44                              9,633.68                       
Current assets
Financial assets

Investment 8         2.82                                5,181.40                       
Trade receivable 10       93.25                              43.48                             
Cash and cash equivalents 11       49.02                              85.31                             
Other financial assets 12       0.01                                -                                 

Current tax assets (net) 9         1.62                                6.03                               
Other current assets 13       57.22                              1.27                               

203.94                            5,317.49                       

TOTAL ASSETS 263.38                            14,951.17                     

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 14       317.40                            317.40                          
Instruments entirely equity in nature 15       2,600.00                         -                                 
Other equity 16       (2,902.57)                       (1,651.32)                     

14.83                              (1,333.92)                     

LIABILITIES
Non-current liability
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 17       -                                  2,206.03                       
Provisions 0.55                                0.36                               

0.55                                2,206.39                       

Current liability
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 17       89.84                              14,066.89                     
Trade payables 18       

(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1.10                                0.90 
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises 131.46                            1.83                               

Other financial liabilities 19       0.51                                0.51                               
Other current liabilities 20       24.39                              7.89                               
Provisions 21       0.09                                0.07                               
Current tax liabilities (net) 22       0.61                                0.61                               

248.00                            14,078.70                     

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 263.38                            14,951.17                     

Material accounting policies and notes forming part of the financial 
statements

1 - 44

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 105215W/ W100057

Sandeep D Welling Ravindra Dhobale Ananya Suneja
Partner Director Director

Membership No.: 044576 DIN 05147051 DIN: 07297081
Mumbai Mumbai
25 April 2025

Vinitha Singh Shreyas Jadhav
 Manager & Chief 
Financial Officer 

 Company Secretary 

Mumbai
25 April 2025



ECap Securities and Investments Limited
(Formerly known as ECap Equities Limited)

Statement of Profit and Loss

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)
Note For the year ended For the year ended

 31 March 2025  31 March 2024

Revenue from operations
Net gain on fair value changes 23 (1.19)                              6.04                             
Interest income 24 772.62                            33.23                          
Sale of commodities -                                  66.19                          
Total revenue from operations 771.43                            105.46                        

Other income 25 236.54                            -                              

Total income 1,007.97                         105.46                        

Expenses
Purchases of commodities -                                  66.16                          
Employee benefits expense 26 9.60                                2.61                             
Finance costs 27 2,024.62                         769.78                        
Impairment on financial instruments 28 (62.88)                            62.88                          
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 7 0.02                                -                              
Other expenses 29 287.84                            7.39                             

Total expenses 2,259.20                         908.82                        

Loss before tax (1,251.23)                       (803.36)                       

Tax expenses:
Current tax -                                  -                              
Deferred tax -                                  -                              

Loss for the year (1,251.23)                       (803.36)                       

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plans (OCI) (0.02)                              (0.08)                           
Tax effect on remeasurement gain on defined benefit plans (OCI) -                                  -                              
Other Comprehensive Income (0.02)                              (0.08)                           

Total comprehensive income (1,251.25)                       (803.44)                       

Earnings per equity share:  (Face value of  Rs 10 each):
Basic 32 (33.42)                            (25.31)                         
Diluted (33.42)                            (25.31)                         

Material accounting policies and notes forming part of the financial statements 1 - 44

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 105215W/ W100057

Sandeep D Welling Ravindra Dhobale Ananya Suneja Alay Mehta
Partner Director Director Chief Executive Officer

Membership No.: 044576 DIN 05147051 DIN: 07297081
Mumbai
25 April 2025

Vinitha Singh Shreyas Jadhav
 Company Secretary 

Mumbai
25 April 2025

 Manager & Chief 
Financial Officer 



ECap Securities and Investments Limited
Cash Flow Statement

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

 For the year ended  For the year ended 
 31 March 2025  31 March 2024

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before taxation (1,251.23)                         (803.36)                         
Adjustments for
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expenses 0.02                                  -                                 
Impairment on financial instruments (62.88) 62.88
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences 0.22 0.16
Profit on sale of investment (236.22)                            (12.01)                           
Fair value of financial instruments 1.19                                  5.97                               
Interest income (771.04)                            (23.85)                           
Interest expense 1,682.99                          760.87                          
Interest on debt securities 320.41 6.02

Operating cash flow before working capital changes (316.54)                            (3.32)                             

Add / (Less): Adjustments for working capital changes
Increase / (Decrease) in non financial liability 16.50                                2.38                               
(Decrease) / Increase in other financial liability - 0.11
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payable 129.84 2.32
(Decrease) / Increase in Provisions (0.03)                                 (0.09)                             
Increase in trade receivable (49.77)                               (43.48)                           
Decrease / (Increase) in other financial assets (0.09)                                 0.19                               
Increase in other non financial assets (55.96)                               (1.01)                             
Cash generated from /(used in) operations (276.05)                            (42.89)                           

Income tax paid (42.17)                               (11.92)                           

Net cash (used in) operating activities - A (318.22)                            (54.80)                           

B. Cash flow from investing activities
(Purchase) / sale of investments 13,822.10                        (9,607.02)                     
Interest received 2,046.32                          23.86                            

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities - B 15,868.42                        (9,583.17)                     

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings (other than debt securities) (Refer Note 2) (13,952.39)                       8,231.12                       
Repayment of debt securities (2,203.92)                         2,203.91                       
Interest paid (2,030.18)                         (711.82)                         
Proceeds from issuance of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 2,600.00                          -                                 

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities - C (15,586.49)                       9,723.22                       

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (36.29)                               85.25                            

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 85.31                                0.07                               
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year 49.02                                85.31

Notes:
1 Cash and cash equivalents include the following:

Balances with banks:   In current accounts 49.02                                 85.31                            

2 Net figures have been reported on account of volume of transactions.

Material accounting policies and notes forming part of the financial statements 1 - 44

This is the Cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date.

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 105215W/ W100057

Sandeep D Welling Ravindra Dhobale Ananya Suneja

Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 044576 DIN 05147051 DIN: 07297081
Mumbai
25 April 2025

Vinitha Singh Shreyas Jadhav
 Manager & Chief 
Financial Officer 

 Company Secretary 

Mumbai
25 April 2025



ECap Securities and Investments Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

(A) Equity share capital As at As at
 31 March 2025  31 March 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year 317.40 317.40 

Changes in equity share capital - - 

Balance at the end of the year 317.40 317.40

(B) Instruments entirely equity in nature- Compulsorily Convertible Debentures
As at As at

 31 March 2025  31 March 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year - - 

Changes in Compulsorily convertible debentures 2,600.00 - 

Balance at the end of the year 2,600.00 - 

(C) Other Equity

Particulars

 Retained earnings Total

Balance at 1 April 2023 (847.89) (847.89) 

Loss for the year (803.36) (803.36) 
 Other comprehensive income (0.08) (0.08) 

 Total comprehensive income for the year (803.44) (803.44) 

 Balance at 31 March 2024 (1,651.32) (1,651.32) 

 Loss for the year (1,251.23) (1,251.23) 
 Other comprehensive income (0.02) (0.02) 

 Total comprehensive income for the year (1,251.25) (1,251.25) 

 Balance at 31 March 2025 (2,902.57) (2,902.57) 

Material accounting policies and notes forming part of the financial statements 1 - 44

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 105215W/ W100057

Sandeep D Welling Ravindra Dhobale Ananya Suneja
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 044576 DIN 05147051 DIN: 07297081

Mumbai
25 April 2025

Vinitha Singh Shreyas Jadhav
 Manager & Chief 
Financial Officer 

 Company Secretary 

Mumbai
25 April 2025



ECap Securities and Investments Limited 
Notes to the financial statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2025 
 

 

1. Background 

ECap Securities and Investments 11 January 
2008 as a public limited company and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Edelweiss Financial 
Services Limited.  

The Company is engaged in trading and investment activities and has investment in group 
companies, AIF funds and securities. 

 

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements 
 

ve been prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time). 

for certain financial instruments such as financial asset measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) instruments, derivative financial instruments, fair value 
through profit and loss account and other financial assets held for trading, which have been 
measured at fair value. in Indian Rupees 
(INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest million, except when otherwise indicated. 

3. Presentation of financial statements 

The Company presents its balance sheet in compliance with the Division II of the Schedule III 
to the Companies Act, 2013. 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. 
They are only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future 
event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances: 

 The normal course of business 
 The event of default 
 The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the company and or its counterparties 

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current. 
Assets 

An asset is classified as current when it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale 

purpose of being traded or it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting 
date or it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or expected 
to be used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Current assets 
include the current portion of non-current assets. All other assets are classified as non-
current. 

 
Liabilities 

operating cycle or it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded or it is due to be settled 
within 12 months after the reporting date or the company does not have an unconditional 
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. 
Terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by 
the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. Current liabilities include 
current portion of non-current liabilities. All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 



ECap Securities and Investments Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2025 
 
4 Material accounting policies 
 
4.1   Revenue recognition 

4.1.1 Interest and dividend income 
Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method 
for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and debt instrument measured at 
FVOCI. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. 

of the dividend is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the 
dividend will flow to the entity, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. 
 

4.1.2 Commodities sales are accounted when all obligations connected with the transfer of risks 
and rewards to the buyer have been fulfilled after the price has been determined and 
collection of the receivable is reasonably certain. 

 
4.2 Financial Instruments   

4.2.1 Date of recognition   

Financial assets and financial liabilities, with the exception of borrowings are initially 
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades; purchases or 
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally 
established by regulation or convention in the market place. The Company recognises 
borrowings when funds are available for utilisation to the Company. 
 

4.2.2 Initial measurement of financial instruments  

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial 
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial 
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 
recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.   

4.2.3 Day 1 profit or loss 

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at 
origination and the fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable 
in market transactions, the Company recognises the difference between the transaction 
price and fair value in net gain on fair value changes. In those cases where fair value is based 
on models for which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the 
transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in statement of profit 
and loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised. 

 

 

 



ECap Securities and Investments Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2025 
 
4.3 Classification of financial instruments 

4.3.1 Financial assets: 

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing 
 

 Amortised cost  
 Fair value through other comprehensive income [FVTOCI]  
 Fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL]  

The Company measures debt financial assets that meet the following conditions at 
amortised cost:  

 the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial 
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and  

 the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.  

Sale that occur for below reason are considered as consistent with business model whose 
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows  

 if those sales are infrequent (even if significant in value) or insignificant in value both 
individually and in aggregate (even if frequent).  

 If such sales are made close to maturity of financial asset and proceeds from sale 
approximate the collection of the remaining contractual cashflow. 

 Selling a financial asset because of significant increase in credit risk. 
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are 
designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):  

 the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and  

 the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.  

Other than above classification of amortised cost and FVOCI, all other financial assets are 
initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at FVTPL.  

4.3.1.1 Amortized cost and Effective interest rate method (EIR) 

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is 
measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative 
amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial 
amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other hand, the 
gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before 
adjusting for any loss allowance.  

4.3.1.2 Financial assets held for trading  

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased 
or issued primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a 
portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together, for which there evidence of a 
recent pattern of short-term profit is taking. Held-for-trading assets and liabilities are 
recorded and measured in the balance sheet at fair value. 



ECap Securities and Investments Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2025 
 
4.3.1.3 Financial asset measured at FVOCI  

Unrealised gains or losses on debt instruments measured at FVOCI are recognised in other 
comprehensive income, and on derecognition of such instrument accumulated gains or 
losses are recycled to statement of profit and loss. Interest income on such instrument is 
recognised in statement of profit and loss as per EIR method. 

4.3.1.4 Investment in equity instruments    

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or 
loss other than investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates which are carried at 
cost less provision for impairment. 

4.3.2 Financial liabilities  

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial 
guarantees, and derivative financial liabilities.   

4.3.2.1 Debt securities and other borrowed funds  

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the instrument.   

The Company issues benchmark linked non-convertible debentures, the return of which is 
linked to performance of specified indices over the period of the debenture. Such 
debentures have a component of an embedded derivative which is fair valued at a reporting 

derivatives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The debt component of such 
debentures is measured at amortised cost using yield to maturity basis. 

4.3.2.2 Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading 
and have been either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily 
required to be measured at fair value under Ind AS 109. Management only designates an 
instrument at FVTPL upon initial recognition when one of the following criteria are met. 
Such designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis: 

 The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that 
would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or 
losses on them on a different basis; or  

 The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed and their 
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk 
management or investment strategy; or 

 The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not 
significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or 
it is clear with little or no analysis when a similar instrument is first considered that 
separation of the embedded derivative(s) is prohibited. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair 
value. Changes in fair value are recorded in statement of profit and loss with the exception 
of movements in fair value of liabilities designated at FVTPL due to changes in the 
Company own credit reserve 
through OCI and do not get recycled to the profit or loss. Interest earned or incurred on 
instruments designated at FVTPL is accrued in interest income or finance cost, respectively, 



ECap Securities and Investments Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2025 
 

using the EIR, taking into account any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction costs 
being an integral part of instrument. Interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be 
measured at FVTPL is recorded using contractual interest rate. 

4.3.2.3 Financial guarantee: 

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Company to make specified payments to 
reimburse to holder for loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment 
when it is due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. 

Financial guarantee issued or commitments to provide a loan at below market interest rate 
are initially measured at fair value and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the 
guarantee or the commitment. Subsequently they are measured at higher of this amortised 
amount and the amount of loss allowance. 

4.3.2.4 Loan commitment 

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, the Company is required to 
provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer during the duration of commitment. 

4.3.3 Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as 
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions 
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.  

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an 
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are 
recognised at the proceeds received. 

4.3.4 Derivatives  

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its 
exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks, including foreign exchange 
forward contracts and interest rate swaps. 

Company has designed a risk strategy based to cover exposure on issuance of Benchmark 
Linked Debentures, by entering into a derivative contracts either to minimise the loss or to 
earn a minimum committed income by entering into a combination of derivative contracts 
(say for example purchased call and put options) with a wide range of strike prices. Above 
strategy has been approved by the risk committee and ensures that risk is fully or partially 
covered, hence supports to reduce the risk exposure. 

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently re-measured at fair 
value through profit or loss. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in statement of profit 
and loss immediately. 

Embedded derivatives 

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-
derivative host contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined 
instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes 
some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be 
modified according to a specified interest rate, foreign exchange rate, or other variable, 
provided that, in the case of a non-financial variable, it is not specific to a party to the 
contract. 



ECap Securities and Investments Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2025 
 

Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives 
and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related 
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated 
at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value 
with changes in fair value recognised in statement of profit and loss, unless designated as 
effective hedging instruments. 

4.4 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities 

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, 
apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or 
terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified. 
 

4.5 Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities 

4.5.1 Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions  

The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms 
and conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new 
loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an 
impairment loss has not already been recorded. The newly recognised financial asset are 
classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes, unless the new financial asset is 
deemed to be POCI. 
When assessing whether or not to derecognise a financial assets, amongst others, the 
Company considers the following factors: 

 Change in currency of the loan 
 Introduction of an equity feature 
 Change in counterparty 

 
If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the 
modification does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted 
at the original EIR, the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an 
impairment loss has not already been recorded. 
 

4.5.2 Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification  
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial 
asset have expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both 
transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition. 
 
The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either: 

 The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the 
financial asset; or 

 It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received 

arrangement. 
Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual 

 



ECap Securities and Investments Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2025 
 

 The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has 
collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with 
the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates 

 The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the 
eventual recipients 

 
The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients 
without material delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, 
except for investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during the 
period between the collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual 
recipients. 
A transfer qualifies for derecognition if either:  

 The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or  
 The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards 

of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset  
The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the 
practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to 
exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.  

 
4.5.3 Derecognition of financial liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, 
cancelled or expires.  

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, 
such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and 
the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the financial 
liability and the consideration paid, including modified contractual cash flow recognised as 
new financial liability, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

4.6 Impairment of financial assets 

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial 
assets not held at FVTPL, together with loan commitment and financial guarantee contracts, 

impairment. 

trade receivables and lease receivables. The application of simplified approach does not 
require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss 
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 
The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio 
of its receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over 
the expected life of the receivables. However, if receivables contain a significant financing 
component, the Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the loss allowance by 
applying general approach to measure ECL.  
For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, 
the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial 
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an 
amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses (12m ECL). The assessment of whether 



ECap Securities and Investments Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2025 
 

lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of 
a default occurring since initial recognition instead of on evidence of a financial asset being 
credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring.  
Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default 
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the 
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial 
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 
The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss 
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. 
The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data 
adjusted by forward-looking information. As for the exposure at default (EAD), for financial 

loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount 
drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any additional amounts expected to be 
drawn down in the future by default date determined based on historical trend, the 

relevant forward-looking information. 
For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows 
that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the 
Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company 
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a 
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account. 
If a financial instrument includes both a loan (i.e. financial asset) and an undrawn 
commitment (i.e. loan commitment) component and the Company cannot separately 
identify the ECL on the loan commitment component from those on the financial asset 
component, the ECL on the loan commitment have been recognised together with the loss 
allowance for the financial asset. To the extent that the combined ECL exceed the gross 
carrying amount of the financial asset, the ECL have been recognised as a provision. Also, for 
other loan commitments and all financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowance has been 
recognised as a provision. 

 

4.7 Collateral valuation 

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where 
possible. The collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of 
credit/guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit 
enhancements such as netting agreements. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded 
on the balance sheet. However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It 
is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a periodical basis. 
However, some collateral, for example, cash or securities relating to margining 
requirements, is valued daily.  
To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held 
as collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market values 
are valued using models.  
 

4.8 Write off 

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company 
has no reasonable expectation of recovery.  
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4.9 Determination of fair value   

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each 
balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:  

 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or  
 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability.  
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.  
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants 
act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes 

in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the 
asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair 
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial 
instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised 
below:  

 Level 1 financial instru
unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
Company has access at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as 
active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and 
liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable 
price quotes available on the balance sheet date.  

 e used for valuation and 
are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available 

 
 

is significant to the measurement as whole. For assets and liabilities that are 
recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. The Company 
periodically reviews its valuation techniques including the adopted methodologies and 
model calibrations.   

Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated 
with its financial instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based 
approach that estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of 
the individual assets, in order to reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties for 
non-collateralised financial instruments.   

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-
instrument basis and reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end 
of the reporting period. 
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4.10 Operating leases 

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use asset and lease liabilities for short 
term leases of property that has lease term of 12 months or less. The Company recognises 
lease payment associated with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over lease 
term. 
 

4.11 Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the 
equity shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding for the year.   
Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other 
contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted 
earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity 
shareholders for the year by  weighted average number of equity shares considered for 
deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could 
have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares.  

4.12 Retirement and other employee benefit 
4.12.1 Provident fund and national pension scheme  

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme 
which is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual 
basis and recognised in the statement of profit and loss.  
 

4.12.2 Gratuity  

respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future 
benefit that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior 
periods, that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any 
plan assets, if any, is deducted. The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan 
is determined based on independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit 
Method.  
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, 
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return 
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit 
liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or 
credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.   
Remeasurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods. 
  
 
 

4.12.3 Compensated Absences  
The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of 
their annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company 
recognises the charge in the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such 
non-vesting accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary. 
The cost of providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit credit 
method.  
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4.12.4 Share-based payment arrangements   

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services 
that are granted by the ultimate parent Company are measured by reference to the fair 
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.  

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is 

that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each 
reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments 
expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in 
statement of profit and loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, 

granted vest in instalments over the vesting period, the Company treats each instalment as a 
separate grant, because each instalment has a different vesting period, and hence the fair 
value of each instalment differs. 

4.13 Property, plant and equipment  

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day to day servicing, 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the 
expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, 
as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.  

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the 
carrying amount thereof when those costs meet the recognition criteria as mentioned 
above. Repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.  

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and 
properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation 
is provided on a written down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended 
use or put to use whichever is earlier. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto 
the date of disposal. 

As per the requirement of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has 
evaluated the useful lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of 
Part C of the Schedule II for calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the 
fixed assets are as follows: 

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:  

Class of assets Useful Life 
Building (Other than factory building) 60 years 
Furniture and fittings 10 years 
Motor vehicles 8 years 
Office equipments 5 years 
Computers and data processing units - Servers and networks 6 years 
Computers and data processing units - End user devices, such as 
desktops, laptops, etc. 

3 years 

 

Land and buildings are subsequently shown at fair value based on periodic valuations by 
external independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings. Valuations will be 
carried out on a regular basis, unless the management consider it appropriate to have an 
earlier revaluation, such that the carrying amount of property does not differ materially from 
that which would be determined using fair values at the end of the reporting period. Any 
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accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying 
amount of the asset, and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.  

Subsequent measurement of land and building under revaluation model: 

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of land and buildings are credited to 

exception is a gain on revaluation that reverses a revaluation decrease (impairment) on the 
same asset previously recognised as an expense. Decreases that offset previous increases of 
the same asset are charged in other comprehensive income and debited against the 
revaluation reserve directly in equity; all other decreases are charged to profit or loss. Each 
year the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the 

transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings. 
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying 
amount of those components which have been separately recognised as assets is 
derecognised at the time of replacement thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or 
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference 
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit 
or loss. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if 
appropriate. 

 

4.14 Intangible assets 
The Company
intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable 
that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the 
Company. 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of 
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of 
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any 
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with 
finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life. 

 
 

4.15 Impairment of non-financial assets   
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an 
asset may be impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the 
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the 
asset or the recoverable amount of cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less 
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The 
reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and 
loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment 
loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the 
recoverable amount subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost. 
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4.16 Cash and cash equivalents  

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and 
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.  

4.17 Provisions and Contingent liabilities  

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the 
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect 
of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the 
expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot 
be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when 
there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the Company. Claims against the Company, where the 
possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as 
contingent liabilities. 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the 
recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income 
is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised. 

4.18 Income tax expenses  

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax (net).  

4.18.1 Current tax  

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 

or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or 

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

 

4.18.2 Deferred tax  

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available 
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.  

Deferred tax assets are also recognised with respect to carry forward of unused tax losses 
and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be 
available against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. 

It is probable that taxable profit will be available against which a deductible temporary 
difference, unused tax loss or unused tax credit can be utilised when there are sufficient 
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taxable temporary differences which are expected to reverse in the period of reversal of 
deductible temporary difference or in periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or 
back. When this is not the case, deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent it is probable 
that: 

 the entity will have sufficient taxable profit in the same period as reversal of deductible 
temporary difference or periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or back; or 

 tax planning opportunities are available that will create taxable profit in appropriate 
periods. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period 
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be 
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in 
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax 
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.  

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that 
would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting 
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.   

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items 
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the 
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity respectively. 

 

5 Critical accounting judgements 

assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be 
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the 
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future periods. 

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies 

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the 
management has made in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and 
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial 
statements. 

a. Business model assessment 
 

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely 
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) and the business model test. The Company 
determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are 
managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes 
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judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is 
evaluated and their performance is measured, the risks that affect the performance of the 
assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. 
The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised 
prior to their maturity to understand the quantum, the reason for their disposal and 
whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset 
was held. Monitoring is part of the Company
business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate 
and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a 
prospective change to the classification of those assets. 

 

b. Significant increase in credit risk 
 

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for 
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased 
significantly since initial recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has 
significantly increased the Company takes into account qualitative and quantitative 
reasonable and supportable forward-looking information. 

 

c. Consolidation of structured entities 
 

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar rights are not 
the dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity, such as when any voting rights 
relate to administrative tasks only and the relevant activities are directed by means of 
contractual arrangements. In the context of the Company, structured entities comprise 
securitisation trusts in asset reconstruction business, mutual fund schemes and alternative 
investment funds / schemes thereof. The Company consolidates the structured entities that 
it controls. When making this judgement, the Company also considers voting and similar 
rights available to itself and other parties, who may limit the Company

management personnel who have the ability to direct the relevant activities, the exposure to 
variability of returns and whether the Company has the ability to use its power to affect the 
amount of the Company
of the investee entity. 

 
6 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of 
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of 
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the 
next financial year, as described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates 
on parameters available when the stand-alone financial statements are prepared. Existing 
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to 
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such 
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

a. Fair value of financial instruments 
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The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or 
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) 
market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) 
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation 
technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the 
balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of 
valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models 
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation 
is required in establishing fair values. 

 

For Investments made into Security receipts (SRs), Company uses discounted cash flow 
model, given that the SRs are less liquid instruments. Expected cash flow levels including 
timing of cash flows are estimated by using quantitative and qualitative measures regarding 
the characteristics of the underlying assets including default rates, nature and value of 
collaterals, manner of resolution and other economic drivers. For any valuation which are 
based on models, Judgements and estimates are applied, which include considerations of 
liquidity, credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and 
volatility. 

 

b. Impairment of financial assets 
 

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires 
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and 
collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant 
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which 
can result in different levels of allowances. 
 

The Company
assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of 
the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include: 

 

 PD calculation includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future 
conditions. 

 The Company
and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credit 
loss and the qualitative assessment. 

 The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis. 
 Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs. 
 Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, 

such as unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EAD and LGD. 
 Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, 

to derive the economic inputs into the ECL models. 
 

It is Company
and adjust when necessary. 
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c. Effective interest rate method 
 

The Company
that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural 
life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of characteristics of the product life cycle 

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected 
behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes fee income/expense 
that are integral parts of the instrument. 

d. Accounting for deferred taxes 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant 
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that 
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits 
together with future tax planning strategies. 

The Company has recognised deferred tax assets on carried forward tax losses where the 
Company believes that the said deferred tax assets shall be recoverable based on the 
estimated future taxable income which in turn is based on approved business plans and 
budgets. The losses are allowed to be carried forward to the years in which the Company 
expects that there will be sufficient taxable profits to offset these losses. 

e. Estimating the incremental borrowing rate: 
The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it 

borrowing rate is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a 
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar 
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. 
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8 Investments

As at 31 March 2025
Particulars  At amortised

 cost  
 At fair value 
through P&L  

Subtotal  At cost (subsidiaries, 
associates, and joint 

ventures) 

Total

 (1)  (2)  3 =(1+2)  (4)  (5) = (3+4)

Current Investments
(a) Investments in units of fund

Units of Alternative Investment Funds -                             2.82                        2.82                           -                                2.82                              

Total - Gross (A) -                             2.82                        2.82                           -                                2.82                             
(i) Investments outside India -                             -                          -                             -                                -                               
(ii) Investment in India -                             2.82                        2.82                           -                                2.82                              
Total (B) -                             2.82                        2.82                           -                                2.82                             
Less: Allowance for impairment (C) -                             -                          -                             -                                -                               
Total Net (A-C) -                             2.82                        2.82                           -                                2.82                             

As at 31 March 2024
Particulars  At amortised

 cost  
 At fair value 
through P&L  

Subtotal  At cost (subsidiaries, 
associates, and joint 

ventures) 

Total

 (1)  (2)  3 = (1+2)  (4)  (5) = (3+4)

Non-current investments
(a) Investments in subsidiaries

Equity shares -                             -                          -                             2,984.61                       2,984.61                      

(b) Investments in group companies
Equity shares -                             -                          -                             2,136.27                       2,136.27                      
Compulsorily Convertible Debentures -                             -                          -                             4,500.00                       4,500.00                      

Current Investments

(a) Investments in units of fund
Units of Alternative Investment Funds -                             4.01                        4.01                           -                                4.01                              

(b) Investements in debt securities of other companies 5,240.28                    -                          5,240.28                    -                                5,240.28                      

Total - Gross (A) 5,240.28                   4.01                        5,244.29                   9,620.88                       14,865.16                    
(i) Investments outside India -                             -                          -                             -                                -                               
(ii) Investment in India 5,240.28                    4.01                        5,244.29                    9,620.88                       14,865.16                    
Total (B) 5,240.28                   4.01                        5,244.29                   9,620.88                       14,865.16                    
Less: Allowance for impairment (C) 62.88                         -                          62.88                         -                                62.88                           
Total Net (A-C) 5,177.40                   4.01                        5,181.40                   9,620.88                       14,802.28                    



ECap Securities and Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Face Value Quantity Amount Face Value Quantity Amount
8 (a) Investments

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries (unquoted)

Edel Investments Limited -                       -                                  -                               10                    3,90,22,000      2,984.61                      

Investments in equity instruments of group companies

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited* -                       -                                  -                               10                    2,08,17,286      2,136.27                      

Investments in group companies

0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDs)
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited -                  -                               -                               10                    2,00,00,000      1,500.00                      
ECap Equities Limited (Formerly Edel Land Limited) -                  -                               -                               10                    30,00,00,000    3,000.00                      

Investments in units of fund (unquoted)
Edelweiss Crossover Opportunities Fund II 10,000            2,86,891                    2.82                             10,000            2,87,172           4.01                              

Investments in Debt securities of other companies 
Neelkanth Realtors Private Limited -                  -                              -                               100                  1,760                  2,001.89                      
Samridhi Infra Square Private Limited -                  -                              -                               100                  568                     587.37                          
Joynest Premises Private Limted -                  -                              -                               100                  568                     485.53                          
Heet Builders Private Limited -                  -                              -                               100                  3,400                  2,165.49                      

-                               5,240.28                      

Less : Diminution in value of investments -                               (62.88)                           

2.82                             14,802.28                    

*Note - Equity Investment of Rs Nil (Previous year Rs.2136.27 millions) is pledged against NCDs issued by group company

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024



ECap Securities and Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

8(b) Investments (Continued)

Unconsolidated Structured Entities

Particulars Carrying amount Maximum exposure Carrying amount Maximum exposure
Edelweiss Crossover Opportunities Fund II 2.82                            2.82                             4.01                              4.01                               
Total Assets 2.82 2.82 4.01 4.01
Total Liabilities 
Off-balance sheet exposure -                              NA -                               NA
Size of the structured entities 348.88 NA 407.69 NA
Income / (loss) from the structured entities -                              NA -                               NA

 31 March 2025  31 March 2024

The size of the structured entity refers to assets under management of alternative investment funds. For investments in structured entities, the
carrying value reflects the Company's maximum exposure to loss.

The following tables show the carrying amount of the Company’s recorded interest in its Balance sheet as well as the maximum exposure to risk (as 
defined in below) due to exposures in unconsolidated structured entities:



ECap Securities and Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

8 (c) Investments measured at amortised cost

Particulars Gross carrying Gross carrying Gross carrying Gross carrying Gross carrying Gross carrying
amount amount amount amount amount amount

(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
High grade                             -                               -                               -                  5,240.28                             -                              -   
Standard grade                             -                               -                               -                               -                               -                              -   
Individually impaired                             -                               -                               -                               -                               -                              -   

Total                             -                               -                               -                  5,240.28                             -                              -   

Reconciliation of gross carrying amount for investments measured at amortised cost

Particulars
Gross carrying

amount
Gross carrying

amount
Gross carrying

amount
Gross carrying

amount
Gross carrying

amount
Gross carrying

amount
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) (Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)

Gross carrying amount - opening balance                5,240.28                             -                               -                               -                               -                              -   
New assets originated or purchased                             -                               -                               -                  5,240.28                             -                              -   
Assets derecognised or matured 
(excluding write offs) (including gains / 
losses  thereon)

(5,240.28)                                         -   -                         -                                                     -   -                        

Changes to contractual cash flows due to 
modifications not resulting in 
derecognition

                            -                               -                               -                               -                               -    - 

Amounts written off                             -                               -                               -                               -                               -    - 
Transfer to Stage 1                             -                               -                               -                               -                               -    - 
Transfer to Stage 2                             -                               -                               -                               -                               -    - 
Transfer to Stage 3                             -                               -                               -   -                                                     -                              -   
Gross carrying amount - closing balance                             -                               -                               -                  5,240.28                             -   -                        

The table below shows the gross carrying amount of the investments measured at amortised cost by credit risk, based on the internal credit rating system
and year-end stage classification. The amount presented are gross of impairment allowances. 

 31 March 2025  31 March 2024

 31 March 2025  31 March 2024
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Current Non Current Total Current Non Current Total

9 Current tax assets (net)

Advance income taxes 1.62                              59.38                       61.00                   6.03                      12.80                 18.83              

1.62                              59.38                       61.00                   6.03                      12.80                 18.83              

10 Trade receivables

Particulars  31 March 2025  31 March 2024

Receivables considered good - unsecured 93.25 43.48

Receivables - credit impaired -                                    -                              

93.25                               43.48                          
Less : Allowance for expected credit losses - -

93.25                               43.48                          

Ageing of Trade receivables

Trade receivables days past due Less than 6 months 6 months -1 year 1-2 years Total

As at March 31, 2025
Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 52.70                           40.55                      -                       93.25                    
ECL provision -                               -                          -                        -                        
Net carrying amount 52.70                           40.55                      -                       93.25                    

As at March 31, 2024
Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 43.48                           -                          -                        43.48                    
ECL provision -                               -                          -                        -                        
Net carrying amount 43.48                           -                          -                       43.48                    

As at As at
 31 March 2025  31 March 2024

11 Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
- in current accounts 49.02                    85.31                     

49.02                    85.31                     

12 Other financial assets

Unsecured considered good
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be 
received 0.01                      -                         

0.01                      -                         

13 Other current assets

Input tax credit 56.35                    0.67                       
Prepaid expenses 0.05                      0.02                       
Vendor advances 0.82                      0.58                       

57.22                    1.27                       

As at As at
 31 March 2025  31 March 2024



ECap Securities and Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)
As at As at

 31 March 2025  31 March 2024
14 Equity share capital

Authorised :
40,000,000 (Previous year: 40,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 400.00                               400.00                               
10,000,000 (Previous year: 10,000,000)  preference shares of Rs. 10 each 100.00                               100.00                               

500.00                               500.00                               

Issued, subscribed and paid up:
31,740,000 (Previous year: 31,740,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 317.40                               317.40                               

317.40                               317.40                               

a. Movement in share capital :

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,17,40,000        317.40                               3,17,40,000          317.40                               
Shares issued during the year -                        -                                     -                         - 
Outstanding at the end of the year 3,17,40,000 317.40 3,17,40,000 317.40

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares :

c. Shares held by holding Company, Promoter company

 No. of shares %  No. of shares %
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, the holding company and its 
nominees

3,17,40,000        100% 3,17,40,000         100%

3,17,40,000        100% 3,17,40,000          100%

15 Instruments entirely equity in nature

0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDs) of Rs.10 each. 26,00,00,000      2,600.00                           -                         -                                      

26,00,00,000      2,600.00                            -                         -                                      

a. Movement in instruments during the year :

0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDs) No of CCDs Amount No of CCDs Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year -                        -                                     -                         -                                      
Issued during the year 26,00,00,000 2,600 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 26,00,00,000      2,600                                 -                         -                                      

b. Terms/rights attached to Instruments entirely equity in nature :

c. Details of holders holding more than 5%

 No. of CCD's %  No. of CCD's %
ECap Equities Limited (Fellow Subsidiary) 26,00,00,000      100% -                         0%

-                        100% -                         -                                      

As at As at
 31 March 2025  31 March 2024

16 Other equity
Retained Earnings
Opening Balance (1,651.32)                      (847.89)                          

Add: Loss for the year (1,251.23)                      (803.36)                          
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year (0.02)                              (0.08)                              

(2,902.57)                      (1,651.32)                      

 31 March 2025  31 March 2024

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held. In the event of

liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferentia

amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

 31 March 2025  31 March 2024

 31 March 2025  31 March 2024

 31 March 2025  31 March 2024

 31 March 2025  31 March 2024

The interest rate is 0.01% per annum and CCDs will be convertible into equity shares within period not exceeding 5 years from the date of issue. 1 CCD will be 
converted into 1 equity share



ECap Securities and Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

17 Borrowings

at amortised cost:

Particulars Current Non Current Total Current Non Current Total

Secured:
Non-convertible debentures*
Unsecured: -                               -                           -                        -                         2,206.03            2,206.03         
Term Loans from from related parties** 89.84                            -                          89.84                    14,066.89             -                      14,066.89       
Total - Gross (A) 89.84                            -                           89.84                    14,066.89             2,206.03            16,272.92       
(i) Borrowings outside India -                                -                           -                        -                         -                      -                   
(ii) Borrowings in India 89.84                            -                           89.84                    14,066.89             2,206.03            16,272.92       

Total (B) 89.84                            -                           89.84                    14,066.89             2,206.03            16,272.92       

Following is the repayment schedule of Debt Securities

Debt Securities as at 31 March 2025

Maturities <1 years 1-3 years > 3 years Total
18.00 - 19.00%                                    -                                 -                              -                              -   
Various (benchmark linked)                                    -                                 -                              -                              -   
Total                                    -                                 -                              -                              -   

Debt Securities as at 31 March 2024

Maturities <1 years 1-3 years > 3 years Total
18.00 - 19.00%                                    -                                 -                 2,206.03                2,206.03 
Various (benchmark linked)                                    -                                 -                              -                              -   
Total                                    -                                 -                 2,206.03                2,206.03 

As at As at
 31 March 2025  31 March 2024

18 Trade payables

Trade payables from non-related parties 1.64                      2.57                       
Trade payables from related parties 130.92                  0.16                       

132.56 2.73

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1.10                      0.90                       
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 131.46                  1.83                       

132.56                  2.73                       

 Outstanding for less than 1 year  from due date of payment
(i) MSME 1.10                      0.90                       
(ii) Others 131.46                  1.83                       
(iii)Disputed dues-MSME -                        -                         
(iv)Disputed dues-Others -                        -                         

132.56                  2.73                       

18.1   Details of dues to micro and small enterprises

As at

Trade payables includes Rs. 1.10 millions (Previous year: Rs. 0.90 millions) payable to “Suppliers” registered under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. No interest has been paid/is payable by the Company during the year to “Suppliers”
registered under this act. The aforementioned is based on the responses received by the Company to its inquiries with suppliers with
regard to applicability under the said act.

 31 March 2025
As at

 31 March 2024

*(The debentures are secured by charge over the  loans to the extent equal to the principal and interest amount i.e. redemption value of debentures) 

** At interest rate ranging from 11.02% to 14.07% p.a. (Previous year interest rate ranging from 10.89% to 13.96%)
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As at As at
 31 March 2025  31 March 2024

19 Other financial liabilities

Others 

Accrued salaries and benefits 0.51                      0.51                       

0.51 0.51

20 Other current liabilities

Withholding taxes, Goods and service tax and other taxes 
payable 24.39 7.89

24.39                    7.89                       

21 Provisions

Non Current
Gratuity 0.46                      0.32                       
Compensated leave absences 0.09                      0.04                       

0.55                      0.36                       

Current
Gratuity short term 0.08                      0.06                       
Compensated absences short term 0.02                      0.01                       

0.09                      0.07                       

0.64                      0.43                       

22 Current tax liabilities (net)

Provision for taxation (net) 0.61                      0.61                       

0.61                      0.61                       



ECap Securities and Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)
For the year ended For the year ended

 31 March 2025  31 March 2024
Revenue from operations

23 Net gain / (loss) on fair value changes

Fair value gain - P&L - investment (1.19) (5.97)
Profit/(loss) on sale of long term investment -                                  12.01                            

Total net gain / (loss) on fair value changes (1.19)                               6.04                               

Fair value changes:
 Realised gain -                                  12.02                             
 Unrealised (loss)/gain (1.19)                               (5.97)                             

Total net gain / (loss) on fair value changes (1.19) 6.04
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
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24 Interest income

Particulars

On financial 
assets

measured at
amortised cost

 Interest income 
on financial 

assets classified 
at fair value

through profit or 
loss 

 Total On financial assets
measured at

amortised cost

 Interest income 
on financial assets 

classified at fair 
value

through profit or 
loss 

 Total 

Interest income on debt instruments* 0.27                      -                         0.27                                 0.00                                 0.00                   
Interest income on investments 771.04 - 771.04 23.86 - 23.86
Interest on deposits with banks 0.18                      -                         0.18                                 9.37                                 -                           9.37                   
Other interest income 1.13                      -                         1.13                                 -                                   -                           -                      

Total 772.62                 -                         772.62                            33.23                              -                           33.23                 
*0.00 represents amounts less than 5,000

For the year ended For the year ended
 31 March 2025  31 March 2024

25 Other income
Interest on income tax refund 0.32                                -                                  
Profit on sale of investments* 236.22                           -                                  

*Note - Refer note 42 (vi)
236.54                           -                                  

For the year ended  31 March 2025 For the year ended  31 March 2024
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(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)
For the year ended For the year ended

 31 March 2025  31 March 2024

26 Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and wages 9.01 2.33
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 2.31) 0.49                                 0.25                               
Staff welfare expenses 0.10                                 0.03                               

9.60 2.61

26.1 The Holding Company (Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (“EFSL”)) has Employee Stock Option Plans in force. Based on such ESOP
schemes, parent entity has granted an ESOP option to acquire equity shares of EFSL that would vest in a graded manner to
Company’s employees. Based on group policy / arrangement, EFSL has charged the fair value of such stock options, Company has
accepted such cross charge and recognised the same under the employee cost.
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27 Finance costs

 Particulars 

On Financial
liabilities

measured at fair
value through
profit or loss

 On financial 
liabilities

measured at 
amortised

cost 

 Total 

On Financial
liabilities

measured at fair
value through
profit or loss

 On financial 
liabilities

measured at 
amortised

cost 

 Total 

Interest on borrowings -                                   1,682.99                      1,682.99                   -                                   760.87                   760.87                   
Interest on debt securities - 320.41 320.41 - 6.02 6.02
Financial and bank charges -                                   20.90                            20.90                         -                                   0.44                        0.44                        
Other interest expense -                                   0.32                              0.32                           -                                   2.45                        2.45                        

Total -                                   2,024.62                      2,024.62                   -                                   769.78                   769.78                   

For the year ended  31 March 2025 For the year ended  31 March 2024
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For the year ended For the year ended

 31 March 2025  31 March 2024

28 Impairment on financial instruments

Impairment provision (62.88) 62.88

(62.88) 62.88 

29 Other expenses

Auditors' remuneration (refer note below) 1.10 0.90 
Commission and brokerage 0.08 - 
Communication 0.05 0.05 
Computer expenses 0.01 0.01 
Legal and professional fees 283.28 4.93
Rates and taxes* 0.25 0.00 
Rating support fees 0.25 - 
Rent 0.28 - 
Goods and service tax expenses 0.14 1.13 
Stamp duty 1.91 0.12 
Stock exchange expenses 0.31 0.01 
Travelling and conveyance 0.06 0.04 
Miscellaneous expenses 0.12 0.20 

287.84 7.39 

29.1 Auditors' remuneration:
As Auditors 0.70 0.90 
For management fees 0.40 - 
Towards reimbursement of expenses* 0.00 - 

*0.00 represents amounts less than 5,000 1.10 0.90 

29.2 Corporate social responsibility (CSR)

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013,

(a) The Company is not required to spend any amount during the year.
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29.3   Income tax disclosures

a. The components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
-                           -                              
-                           -                                  
-                           -                              
-                           -                              
-                           -                              
-                           -                              

b. Reconciliation of total tax charge

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(1,251.23)                (803.36)                      

25.17% 25.17%
                    (314.91)                       (202.19)
                               -                                      - 
                      314.91                         202.19 
                               -                                    -   

Note
The Company is under new tax regime and the applicable tax rate is accordingly shown in above table.

c. Details of temporary differences where deferred tax assets have not been recognised in the balance sheet

As at March 31, 2025
Financial Year to which the loss relates 
to

Total

Amount Expiry year - 
financial year

Amount Expiry year - 
financial year

Long Term 
Capital Loss 

Expiry year - 
financial year

Short-term Capital 
loss

Expiry year - 
financial year

Amount

 F.Y. 2023-24                              -                                  -                           94.65  AY 2032-33                               -                         -                                  -                          -                           94.65 

 Total                              -                           94.65                              -                                  -                           94.65 

As at March 31, 2024
Financial Year to which the loss relates 
to

Total

Amount Expiry year - 
financial year

Amount Expiry year - 
financial year

Long Term 
Capital Loss 

Expiry year - 
financial year

Short-term Capital 
loss

Expiry year - 
financial year

Amount

                             -                                  -                                  -                                    -                                -                         -                                  -                          -                                  -   

 Total                              -                                  -                                -                                  -   

Income tax expense calculated based on this tax rate

Particulars
Current tax 
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years 
Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 
Total tax charge 
Current tax 
Deferred tax

Particulars
Accounting profit before tax as per financial statements
Tax rate (in percentage)

Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years 
Effect of non-recognition of deferred tax asset on current-period losses

Unused tax losses

Tax charge for the year recorded in Statement of Profit and Loss

Unused tax losses
Unabsorbed Depreciation Business Loss

Unabsorbed Depreciation Business Loss
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30 Segment reporting

Segment
Capital based business

Treasury

Agency business 

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2025

For the year ended 
31 March 2024

Segment revenue
I a)  Capital based business 1,009.20                         33.23                              

b)  Treasury (1.55)                                6.07                                 
d)  Unallocated 0.32                                 -                                   
Total 1,007.97                         39.30                              
Less : Inter segment revenue -                                   -                                   
Total income 1,007.97                         39.30                              

II Segment results
a)  Capital based business                         (1,248.13)                            (800.92)
b)  Treasury                                 (3.42)                                 (2.43)
c)  Unallocated 0.32                                                                       -   
Total                         (1,251.23)                            (803.36)
Loss before taxation                         (1,251.23)                            (803.36)
Less : Provision for taxation -                                                                         -   
Loss after taxation                         (1,251.23)                            (803.36)

III Segment assets
a)  Capital based business 0.94                                 14,801.80                      
b)  Treasury 145.09                            129.87                            
c)  Unallocated 117.36                            19.50                              
Total 263.38                            14,951.17                      

IV Segment liabilities
a)  Capital based business 2.59                                 16,154.08                      
b)  Treasury 220.97                            122.52                            
c)  Unallocated 24.99                               8.49                                 
Total 248.55                            16,285.09                      

Note
Commodities purchases and sales is reported as net under treasury in segment revenue.

Since the business operations of the Company are primarily concentrated in India, the Company is considered to operate only in the
domestic segment and therefore there is no reportable geographic segment.

The following table gives information as required under the Ind AS -108 - Operating Segment Reporting:

The Company’s business is organised and the management reviews the performance, based on the business segments as mentioned 
below:

Income for each segment has been specifically identified. Expenditures, assets and liabilities are either specifically identified with
individual segments or have been allocated to segments on a systematic basis.

Based on such allocations, segment disclosures relating to revenue, results, assets and liabilities have been prepared.

Interest Income on loans, income from investments and other capital based 
activities
Income from treasury operations, interest income on debt instruments and 
dividend income
Broking and referral services
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31 Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 - Related Party Disclosure

i. List of related parties and relationship:

Name of related party by whom control is 
exercised Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (Holding company)

Fellow subsidiaries ECap Equities Limited
(with whom transactions have taken place) ECL Finance Limited

Edel Finance Company Limited
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Nido Home Finance Limited
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
EAAA India Alternatives Limited (formerly Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited)
Edelcap Securities Limited
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited
Edel Investments Limited

Key Managerial Personnel Vinitha Singh - Manager & Chief Financial Officer
Tarun Khurana (upto April 15, 2024)
Shreyas Jadhav (from June 1, 2024)
Ananya Suneja - Non-executive Director
Ravindra Dhobale  - Non-executive Director
Nikhil Johari - Non-executive Director
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31 Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 - Related Party Disclosure (continued)
ii.  Transactions with related parties : 

 Sr. 
No. 

 Nature of transaction Related party name  For the year ended 
31 March 2025 

 For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

 Capital account transactions during the year 

1       Sale of equity shares to ECap Equities Limited 3,085.08                                -                                          
Edel Finance Company Limited 2,630.06                                -                                          

2       Purchase of Debt Instruments from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 2,670.24

3       Sale of Debt Instruments to ECap Equities Limited 4,630.50                                -                                          

4       Investment in Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDs) Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited -                                          1,500.00                                
ECap Equities Limited -                                          3,000.00                                

5       Sale of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDs) ECap Equities Limited 813.67 -
Edel Finance Company Limited 3,328.30 -

6       Issue of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDs) ECap Equities Limited 2,600.00                                -                                          

 Current account transactions during the year 

7       Short term loans taken from (refer note below) Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 799.50                                    7,020.33                                
ECap Equities Limited 7,515.86 7,604.39
ECL Finance Limited -                                          1,710.00                                
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 200.00                                    2,500.00                                
Nido Home Finance Limited 1,100.00                                950.00                                    
Edel Finance Company Limited 4,608.92                                274.46                                    

8       Short term loans repaid to Edel Finance Company Limited 4,578.92                                3,645.72                                
ECap Equities Limited 11,477.92                              3,642.33                                
ECL Finance Limited 500.00                                    3,590.00                                
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 2,700.00                                -                                          
Nido Home Finance Limited 1,100.00                                950.00                                    
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 7,819.83                                -                                          

9       Interest expense on loans taken from ECap Equities Limited 772.33                                    123.74                                    
Nido Home Finance Limited 63.70                                      85.25                                      
ECL Finance Limited 3.20                                        386.31                                    
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 170.54                                    5.42                                        
Edel Finance Company Limited 4.98                                        131.88                                    
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 668.25                                    28.26                                      

10     Interest Income on CCDs Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited* 0.02                                        0.00                                        
ECap Equities Limited* 0.25                                        0.00                                        

11     Cost reimbursement paid to Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.05                                        0.02                                        
EAAA India Alternatives Limited 2.59                                        -                                          

12     Cost reimbursement received from ECap Equities Limited -                                          2.00                                        

13     Other reimbursement paid to ECap Equities Limited -                                          0.01                                        
Edel Investments Limited 0.15                                        0.09                                        

14     Purchase of fixed assets from Edelcap Securities Limited 0.02                                        -                                          

15     Corporate Guarantee support fee paid to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 21.33                                      0.01                                        

16     Loan management fees paid to ECL Finance Limited 245.82                                    -                                          

17     Remuneration paid to key managerial personnel Vinitha Singh 2.30                                        2.28                                        
Shreyas Jadhav 0.77                                        -                                          

 Balances with related parties  

18     Short term loans taken from Edel Finance Company Limited 30.00                                      -                                          
ECap Equities Limited -                                          3,962.07                                
ECL Finance Limited -                                          500.00                                    
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited -                                          7,020.32                                
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited -                                          2,500.00                                

19     Trade receivable from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.01                                        2.93                                        
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 52.70                                      -                                          

20     Trade payable to Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited* 0.01                                        0.00                                        
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited -                                          0.01                                        

21     Other payable to ECap Equities Limited -                                          0.01                                        
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited* -                                          0.00                                        
Edel Investments Limited 0.03                                        0.09                                        
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited -                                          0.04                                        
ECL Finance Limited 121.19                                    -                                          



ECap Securities and Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements  (continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

31 Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 - Related Party Disclosure (continued)
ii.  Transactions with related parties : 

 Sr. 
No. 

 Nature of transaction Related party name  For the year ended 
31 March 2025 

 For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

22  Interest payable on loans taken from ECap Equities Limited 53.78 19.28
ECL Finance Limited -                                          22.41                                      
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited -                                          4.88                                        
Edel Finance Company Limited 4.48                                        (0.36)                                      
Nido Home Finance Limited -                                          12.86                                      
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1.58                                        25.43                                      

23     Investments in equity shares of Edel Investments Limited - 2,984.61
 Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - 2,136.27

24     Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited -                                          1,500.00                                
ECap Equities Limited -                                          3,000.00                                

25     Compulsorily Convertible Debentures held by ECap Equities Limited 2,600.00                                -                                          

Note:

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

Disclosure under section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 for loans and guarantee: Loans have been given for general business purpose.

All above transactions are in the ordinary course of business and are at arms length price.

 Investments in Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDs) 

*0.00 represents amounts less than 5,000

Loan given/taken to/from related parties and margin money placed / refund received with/ from related parties are disclosed based on the total of debit and credit of transsaction amount given/taken
and placed/refund received during the reporting period.

As part of fund based activities, intergroup company loans and advances activities undertaken are generally in the nature of loans repayable at any time before maturity. Such loans and advances,
voluminous in nature, are carried on at arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business. Pursuant to Ind AS 24 – Related Party Disclosures, sum of loans given and repaid are disclosed above as in
the view of the management it provides meaningful reflection of such related party transactions on the financial statements. Interest income and expenses on such loans and advances are disclosed on
the basis of full amounts of such loans and advances given and repaid.

Information relating to remuneration paid to key managerial personnel mentioned above excludes provision made for gratuity, leave encashment and deferred bonus which are provided for group of
employees on an overall basis. These are included on cash basis. The variable compensation included herein is on cash basis.
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32 Earnings per share

 31 March 2025  31 March 2024
                     (1,251.23)                      (803.36)

                     (1,251.23)                      (803.36)
(b)

3,17,40,000 3,17,40,000
                                    -                                   -   

                     56,98,630                                 -   

3,74,38,630 3,17,40,000
3,74,38,630 3,17,40,000

                                    -                                   -   
(c)                            (33.42)                         (25.31)

33

Commitments

34 Approach to capital management

Particulars  31 March 2025  31 March 2024
Total Debt                              89.84                      16,272.92 
Equity                              14.83                      (1,333.92)
Net Debt to Equity                                6.06                            (12.20)

Company monitors capital using debt-equity ratio, which is total debt divided by total equity.

The Company has no capital commitments towards fixed assets as at the balance sheet date (Previous year: Rs. Nil/-)

Net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders
Calculation of weighted average number of equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year
Number of Shares issued during the year

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (based on the date of 
issue of shares)

Basic and diluted earnings per share (in rupees) (a)/(b)

Contingent liabilities and commitments 

Contingent liabilities

The Company has no contingent liabilities as at the balance sheet date (Previous year Rs. Nil).

Number of dilutive potential equity shares

Weighted average number of shares on conversion of  Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 
(CCDs)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Company objectives, when managing capital, are to (a) maximise shareholder value and provide benefits to other stakeholders and (b)
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders.

(a) Loss after tax
(as per statement of profit and loss)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference
shares and interest on the convertible bond, in each case, net of tax) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

Particulars
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

35 Remaining contractual maturities

A. Analysis of non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities

As at 31 March 2025  0 to 180 days  181 days to 365 days  1 year to 3 years  Over 3 years  Total 
Trade payables                         132.56                                        -                                 -                                    -   132.56                          
Borrowings                           89.84                                        -                                 -                                    -   89.84                            
Other financial liabilities                             0.51                                        -                                 -                                    -   0.51                              
Total undiscounted non-derivative financial liabilities 222.91                       -                                    -                           -                              222.91                          

As at 31 March 2024  0 to 180 days  181 days to 365 days  1 year to 3 years  Over 3 years  Total 
Trade payables                             2.73                                        -                                 -                                    -   2.73
Borrowings                                  -                            14,066.89                               -                        2,206.03 16,272.92                     
Other financial liabilities                             0.51                                        -                                 -                                    -   0.51
Total undiscounted non-derivative financial liabilities 3.24                            14,066.89                        -                           2,206.03                    16,276.16                     

B. Analysis of non-derivative financial assets by remaining contractual maturities

As at 31 March 2025  0 to 180 days  181 days to 365 days  1 year to 3 years  Over 3 years  Total 
Cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances                           49.02                                        -                                 -                                    -   49.02                            
Trade receivables                           52.70                                  40.55                               -                                    -   93.25                            
Investments at fair value through profit or loss                             2.82                                        -                                 -                                    -   2.82                              
Other financial assets                             0.01                                        -                                 -                                    -   0.01                              
Total 104.55                       40.55                                -                           -                              145.10                          

As at 31 March 2024  0 to 180 days  181 days to 365 days  1 year to 3 years  Over 3 years  Total 
Cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances                           85.31                                        -                                 -                                    -   85.31                            
Trade receivables                           43.48                                        -                                 -                                    -   43.48                            
Investments at fair value through profit or loss                             4.01                                        -                                 -                                    -   4.01                              
Investments at cost                                  -                                          -                                 -                        9,620.88 9,620.88                       
Investments at amortised cost                      5,177.39                                        -                                 -                                    -   5,177.39                       
Total 5,310.19                    -                                    -                           9,620.88                    14,931.07                     

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company’s non-derivative financial assets

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities:
Repayments which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately. However, the Company expects that the counterparties will not request repayment 
on the earliest date it could be required to pay.
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(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

36 Market risk

(i) Equity price risk

Impact on
Increase in equity 
price (%)

Effect on profit 
before tax Effect on Equity

Decrease in equity 
price (%)

Effect on profit 
before tax Effect on Equity

AIF Funds 5 0.14                     -                        5 (0.14)                       -                                

Impact on
Increase in equity 
price (%)

Effect on profit 
before tax Effect on Equity

Decrease in equity 
price (%)

Effect on profit 
before tax Effect on Equity

AIF Funds 5 0.20                     -                        5 (0.20)                       -                                

2024-25

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange

rates and equity prices. The Company classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or non–trading portfolios and manages each of those portfolios separately.

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the level of individual investment in equity share
prices.

2023-24



ECap Securities and Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

37

Particulars Carrying amount Traded risk Non-traded risk Carrying amount Traded risk Non-traded risk
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent and other bank 
balances 49.02                              -                      49.02                              85.31                              -                      85.31                              
Financial assets at FVTPL 2.82                                2.82                    -                                  4.01                                4.01                    -                                  
Trade receivables 93.25                              -                      93.25                              43.48                              -                      43.48                              
Financial investments– amortised cost - - - 5,177.39 - 5,177.39                        
Investments at cost - - - 9,620.88 - 9,620.88
Other financial assets 0.01 -                      0.01                                -                                  - -                                  
Total 145.10                           2.82                    142.28                           14,931.07                     4.01                    14,927.07                     

Particulars Carrying amount Traded risk Non-traded risk Carrying amount Traded risk Non-traded risk
Liability
Borrowings 89.84                              -                      89.84                              16,272.92                     -                      16,272.92                     
Trade payables 132.56                           -                      132.56                           2.73                                - 2.73                                
Other financial liabilities 0.51                                -                      0.51                                0.51                                -                      0.51                                
Total 222.91                           -                      222.91                           16,276.16                     - 16,276.16                     

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Total market risk exposure

Fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The
Company classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or non–trading portfolios and manages each of those portfolios separately. Such risks the market risk for the
trading portfolio is managed and monitored based on a VaR methodology that reflects the interdependency between risk variables. Non–trading positions are managed and
monitored using other sensitivity analysis.
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(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

38 Disclosure related to collateral:

Following table sets out availability of Company's financial assets to support funding:

31 March 2025 Pledge as collateral others 1* Available as 
collateral

others 2** Total carrying amount

Cash and cash equivalent including bank balance - - - 49.02 49.02
Trade receivables -                                -                           -                           93.25                            93.25                             
Investments -                                -                           -                           2.82                               2.82                               
Other financial assets -                                -                           -                           0.01                               0.01                               
Current tax assets (net) -                                -                           -                           61.00                            61.00                             
Property, plant and equipment - -                           0.06                         -                                 0.06                               
Other non- financial assets - - - 57.22 57.22
Total assets -                                -                           0.06                         263.32                          263.38                           

31 March 2024 Pledge as collateral others 1* Available as 
collateral

others 2** Total carrying amount

Cash and cash equivalent including bank balance -                                -                           85.31                            85.31                             
Trade receivables -                                -                           -                           43.48                            43.48                             
Investments 7,313.66 - - 7,488.62                       14,802.28                     
Current tax assets (net) -                                -                           -                           18.83                            18.83                             
Other non- financial assets -                                -                           -                           1.27                               1.27                               
Total assets 7,313.66                      -                           -                           7,637.50                       14,951.17                     

* (Represents assets which are not pledged but are kept for asset security cover towards debentures issued and Company believes it is restricted from using to
secure funding for legal or other reason)

** (Represents assets which are not restricted for use as collateral, but that the Company would not consider readily available to secure funding in the normal
course of business)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

39 Fair values of financial instruments

(a) Fair values of assets and liabilities

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investments
Units of Alternative Investment Funds -                 -                        2.82                          2.82                          
Total investments measured at fair value                     -                              -                             2.82                           2.82 

Total financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis -                 -                        2.82                         2.82                         

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis -
Exchange-traded derivatives - - - -
Total derivative financial instruments  (liabilities) -                  -                         -                            -                            
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Provision for short sale -                  -                         -                            -                            
Total financial liabilities at FVTPL -                  -                         -                            -                            

Total financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis -                  -                         -                            -                            

Fair valuation techniques:
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

31 March 2025

31 March 2025

Debt securities
Whilst most of these instruments are standard fixed or floating rate securities, however nifty linked debentures have embedded derivative
characteristics. Fair value of these instruments is derived based on the indicative quotes of price and yields prevailing in the market as at the
reporting date. Company has used quoted price of national stock exchange wherever bonds are traded actively. In cases where debt securities
are not activity traded Company has used CRISIL Corporate Bond Valuer model for measuring fair value.

Equity instruments and units of Alternative Investment Funds
The majority of equity instruments are actively traded on recognized stock exchanges with readily available active prices on a regular basis. Such
instruments are classified as Level 1. Units held in funds are measured based on fund net asset value (NAV), taking into account redemption
and/or other restrictions. Such NAV Such instruments are generally Level 3. Equity instruments in non-listed entities are initially recognised at
transaction price and re-measured at each reporting date at valuation provided by external valuer at instrument level. Unlisted equity securities
are classified at Level 3.

Derivatives

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with various counter-parties, primarily banks with investment grade credit ratings.

Derivatives valued using valuation techniques with market observable inputs are exchange traded futures and options contracts. The most

frequently applied valuation techniques include quoted price for exchange traded derivatives and Black Scholes models (for option valuation). 
Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract with the effect that some of the
cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative.
Company uses valuation models. Inputs to valuation models are determined from observable market (Indices) data wherever possible, including
prices available from exchanges, dealers, brokers. Company classify these embedded derivative as level 3 instruments.
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

39 Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

(a) Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investments
Units of Alternative Investment Funds -                 -                        4.01                          4.01                          

Total investments measured at fair value                     -                              -                             4.01                           4.01 

Total financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis -                 -                        4.01                         4.01                         

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis -
Exchange-traded derivatives - - - -                            

Total derivative financial instruments  (liabilities) -                  -                         -                            -                            

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss -
Provision for short sale -                  -                         -                            -                            

Total financial liabilities  at FVTPL -                  -                         -                            -                            

Total financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis -                  -                         -                            -                            

31 March 2024

31 March 2024
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

39 Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

(b)

Particulars
Investments in units 

of AIF
Total

At 1 April 2024 4.01                              4.01                           
Purchase -                                -                             
Sales / Redemption (0.00)                             (0.00)                         
Gains / (losses) for the period (2024-25) recognised in profit or loss (including 
accrued interest) (1.18) (1.18)
At 31 March 2025 2.82 2.82

Unrealised gains / (losses) related to balances held at the end of the period (1.18) (1.18)

Particulars
Investments in units 

of AIF
Total

At 1 April 2023 131.23                         131.23                      
Purchase -                                -                             
Sales (53.88)                          (53.88)                       
Gains / (losses) for the period (2023-24) recognised in profit or loss (including 
accrued interest) (73.34)                          (73.34)                       
At 31 March 2024 4.01                              4.01                           

Unrealised gains / (losses) related to balances held at the end of the period 57.76                           57.76                        

Movement in level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening balances and the closing balances for fair value measurements in 



EC
ap

 S
ec

ur
iti

es
 a

nd
 In

ve
st

m
en

ts
 L

im
ite

d

N
ot

es
 to

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 (C
on

tin
ue

d)

(C
ur

re
nc

y 
: I

nd
ia

n 
ru

pe
es

 in
 m

ill
io

ns
)

39
Fa

ir
 v

al
ue

s 
of

 fi
na

nc
ia

l i
ns

tr
um

en
ts

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)

(c
)

U
no

bs
er

va
bl

e 
in

pu
ts

 u
se

d 
in

 m
ea

su
ri

ng
 fa

ir 
va

lu
e 

ca
te

go
ris

ed
 w

ith
in

 L
ev

el
 3

 :

Ty
pe

 o
f f

in
an

ci
al

 in
st

ru
m

en
ts

Fa
ir 

va
lu

e 
of

  a
ss

et
 

as
 o

n 
31

 M
ar

ch
 

20
25

Fa
ir 

va
lu

e 
of

  
lia

bi
lit

y 
as

 o
n 

31
 

M
ar

ch
 2

02
5

Va
lu

at
io

n 
te

ch
ni

qu
es

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 u

no
bs

er
va

bl
e 

in
pu

t 

Ra
ng

e 
of

 e
st

im
at

es
 (w

ei
gh

te
d-

av
er

ag
e)

 fo
r u

no
bs

er
va

bl
e 

in
pu

t

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
un

ob
se

rv
ab

le
 in

pu
t 

(%
 o

r a
s 

th
e 

ca
se

 m
ay

 
be

)

Ch
an

ge
 in

 fa
ir

 
va

lu
e

D
ec

re
as

e 
in

 th
e 

un
ob

se
rv

ab
le

 
in

pu
t (

%
 o

r a
s 

th
e 

ca
se

 m
ay

 b
e)

Ch
an

ge
 in

 fa
ir

 
va

lu
e

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 in
 u

ni
ts

 o
f A

IF
2.

82
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
N

et
 a

ss
et

s 
ap

pr
oa

ch
Fa

ir 
va

lu
e 

of
 u

nd
er

ly
in

g 
 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 R
s.

 9
.8

3 
pe

r U
ni

t 
5%

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
14

 
5%

(0
.1

4)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

To
ta

l
2.

82
-

0.
14

(0
.1

4)

Ty
pe

 o
f f

in
an

ci
al

 in
st

ru
m

en
ts

Fa
ir 

va
lu

e 
of

  a
ss

et
 

as
 o

n 
31

 M
ar

ch
 

20
24

Fa
ir 

va
lu

e 
of

  
lia

bi
lit

y 
as

 o
n 

31
 

M
ar

ch
 2

02
4

Va
lu

at
io

n 
te

ch
ni

qu
es

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 u

no
bs

er
va

bl
e 

in
pu

t 

Ra
ng

e 
of

 e
st

im
at

es
 (w

ei
gh

te
d-

av
er

ag
e)

 fo
r u

no
bs

er
va

bl
e 

in
pu

t

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
un

ob
se

rv
ab

le
 in

pu
t 

(%
 o

r a
s 

th
e 

ca
se

 m
ay

 
be

)

Ch
an

ge
 in

 fa
ir

 
va

lu
e

D
ec

re
as

e 
in

 th
e 

un
ob

se
rv

ab
le

 
in

pu
t (

%
 o

r a
s 

th
e 

ca
se

 m
ay

 b
e)

Ch
an

ge
 in

 fa
ir

 
va

lu
e

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 in
 u

ni
ts

 o
f A

IF
4.

01
-

N
et

 a
ss

et
s 

ap
pr

oa
ch

Fa
ir 

va
lu

e 
of

 u
nd

er
ly

in
g 

 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 R

s.
 1

4 
pe

r U
ni

t 
5%

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
20

 
5%

(0
.2

0)
To

ta
l

4.
01

-
0.

20
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(0

.2
0)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

Fo
llo

w
in

g 
ta

bl
es

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t s
ig

ni
fic

an
t u

no
bs

er
va

bl
e 

in
pu

ts
 u

se
d 

at
 re

sp
ec

tiv
e 

ba
la

nc
e 

sh
ee

t d
at

es
 in

 m
ea

su
rin

g 
fin

an
ci

al
 in

st
ru

m
en

ts
 c

at
eg

or
is

ed
 a

s 
Le

ve
l 3

 in
 th

e 
fa

ir 
va

lu
e 

hi
er

ar
ch

y:



ECap Securities and Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

39 Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

(d) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Particulars
Total carrying 

amount
Total fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalent                              49.02                               49.02                     49.02                                      -                         -   
Trade receivables                              93.25                               93.25                            -                                 93.25                       -   
Other financial assets - Group                                0.01                                 0.01                            -                                   0.01                       -   
Total                            142.28                            142.28                     49.02                               93.26                       -   

Financial liabilities:
Trade payables                            132.56                             132.56                            -                               132.56                       -   
Borrowing                              89.84                               89.84                            -                                 89.84                       -   
Other financial liabilities                                0.51                                 0.51                            -                                   0.51                       -   
Total                            222.91 222.91                            -   222.91                       -   

Particulars
Total carrying 

amount
Total fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalent                              85.31 85.31                                                 85.31                                      -                         -   
Trade receivables                              43.48 43.48                                                        -                                 43.48                       -   
Investments at amortised cost                        5,177.39 5,177.39                                                  -                           5,177.39                       -   
Investments at cost                        9,620.88 9,620.88                                                  -                           9,620.88                       -   
Total                      14,927.07                       14,927.07                     85.31                       14,841.75                       -   

Financial liabilities:
Trade payables                                2.73 2.73                                                          -                                   2.73                       -   
Borrowing                      16,272.92 16,272.92                                                -                         16,272.92                       -   
Other financial liabilities                                0.51 0.51                                                          -                                   0.51                       -   
Total                      16,276.16 16,276.16                                                -   16,276.16                                           -   

31 March 2024

The following table sets out the fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value and analysing them by the level in the fair value hierarchy 
into which each fair value measurement is categorised.

31 March 2025
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

40 Disclosure pursuant to IND AS 19 - Employee benefits

(a) Defined contribution plan (provident fund)

(b) Defined benefit plan (gratuity):

Statement of profit and loss of the year:
Net employee benefit expenses (recognised in employee cost):

 31 March 2025  31 March 2024
Current service cost                                 0.08                                    0.04 
Interest on defined benefit obligation                                 0.03                                    0.02 
Past service cost                                      -                                           -   
Actuarial loss/(gain)                                      -                                           -   
Total included in employee benefit expenses                                 0.11                                    0.06 

Balance sheet:
Details of provision for gratuity:

 31 March 2025  31 March 2024
Liability at the end of the year 0.53                                                                   0.39 
Amount in balance sheet 0.53                                                                   0.39 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

 31 March 2025  31 March 2024
Liability at the beginning of the year 0.39                                                                   0.25 
Transfer in/(out) 0.01                                -                                     
Interest cost 0.03                                0.02                                   
Current service cost 0.08                                0.04                                   
Past service cost -                                   -                                     
Benefits paid -                                   -                                     
Re-measurement 0.02                                0.08                                   
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations -                                                                           -   
Liability at the end of the year 0.53                                0.39                                   

Non-current liability at the end of the year    0.46                                0.32                                   
Current liability at the end of the year 0.08                                0.06                                   

Amount recognised in the balance sheet:

For the year ended
For the year 

ended
 31 March 2025  31 March 2024

Liability at the end of the year                             0.53                          0.39 
Fair value of plan assets at the end of year  -                               -   
Amount recognized in balance sheet                             0.53                          0.39 

Experience adjustment:

For the year ended
For the year 

ended
 31 March 2025  31 March 2024

On plan liabilities (gain)/loss                             0.00                          0.08 
On plan assets (gain)/loss -                               -   
Estimated contribution for next year 0.00                                                     0.08 

Principle actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date:

 31 March 2025  31 March 2024
Salary Growth Rate 7% 7%
Discount Rate 6.3% 7%
Interest Rate on Net DBO/ (Asset) 7% 7.1%
Withdrawal Rate 16.00% 16.00%
Mortality Rate IALM 2012-14 (Ult.) IALM 2012-14 (Ult.)
Weighted average duration of the obligation 3.5 years 3.5 years

Amount of Rs. 0.33 millions (Previous year: Rs. 0.11 millions) is recognised as expenses and included in “Employee benefit” – Note 26 in the 
statement of profit and loss.

The following tables summarise the components of the net employee benefit expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss and amounts 
recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity benefit plan.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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40 Disclosure pursuant to IND AS 19 - Employee benefits (continued)

Movement in other comprehensive income

 31 March 2025  31 March 2024

Balance at start of year (Loss)/ Gain (0.09)                              (0.01)                                 
Re-measurements on defined benefit obligation
a) Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from changes in demographic assumptions -                                  -                                     

b) Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from changed in financials assumptions (0.02)                              (0.00)                                 
c) Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from experience over last past year (0.00)                              (0.08)                                 
Re-measurements on plan assets

-                                   -                                     
Balance at end of year (Loss)/ Gain (0.12)                              (0.09)                                 

Sensitivity analysis:

DBO increases/ (decreases) by  31 March 2025  31 March 2024
1% Increase in Salary Growth Rate 0.03                                0.02                                   
1% Decrease in Salary Growth Rate (0.03)                              (0.02)                                 
1% Increase in Discount Rate (0.03)                              (0.02)                                 
1% Decrease in Discount Rate 0.04                                0.02                                   
1% Increase in Withdrawal Rate (0.00)                              Negligible Change
1% Decrease in Withdrawal Rate 0.00                                Negligible Change
Mortality (increase in expected lifetime by 1 year) Negligible Change Negligible Change
Mortality (increase in expected lifetime by 3 years) Negligible Change Negligible Change

Movement in surplus / (deficit)

 31 March 2025  31 March 2024
Surplus / (Deficit) at start of year (0.39)                       (0.25)                              
Net (Acquisition) / Divestiture -                          -                                  
Net Tranfer (In)/ Out (0.01)                       -                                  
Current Service Cost (0.08)                       (0.04)                              
Benefits Paid -                           -                                   
Past Service Cost -                           -                                   
Net Interest on net DBO (0.03)                       (0.02)                              
Re-measurements (0.02)                       (0.08)                              
Contributions / Benefits -                          -                                  
Surplus / (Deficit) at end of year (0.53)                       (0.39)                              

Return on plan assets excluding amount including in net interest on the net defind benefit liability / 
(asset)
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
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41 Analysis of risk concentration

Industry analysis - Risk concentration for 31 March 2025

Particulars Financial services Real Estate Total
Financial assets
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss 2.82                                   -                                2.82                               
Cash and cash equivalent 49.02 - 49.02
Trade receivables 93.25                                -                                93.25                             
Other financial assets 0.01                                   -                                0.01                               

145.10                              -                                145.10                           
Other Commitments -                                     -                                -                                 
 Total 145.10                              -                                145.10                           

Industry analysis - Risk concentration for 31 March 2024

Particulars Financial services Real Estate Total
Financial assets
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss 4.01                                   -                                4.01                               
Cash and cash equivalent 85.31                                -                                85.31                             
Trade receivables 43.48                                -                                43.48                             
Investments at amortised cost -                                     5,177.39                      5,177.39                       
Investments at cost 9,620.88                          -                                9,620.88                       

9,753.68                          5,177.39                      14,931.07                     
Other Commitments -                                     -                                -                                 
 Total 9,753.68                          5,177.39                      14,931.07                     
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

42 Other Disclosures

(i) Relationship with Struck off Companies

(ii)

(iii)

(iv) Disclosure of Ratios

Sr. 
No.

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

1                            0.34                             1.09 
2 -124.13% -761.74%

(v)

(vi) During the year, the Company made a one time net profit of Rs 23.60 crores by selling its investments in group company securities and
outside investments in debentures, as reported in the profit and loss statement.

The Company does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956.

During the year, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

During the year, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Particulars

Total debts to total assets (refer note 1)

Audit Trail
The accounting software used by the company to maintain its books of accounts have a feature of recording the audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all transactions recoded in the software as also in database maintained
with respect thereto.

3. Current ratio, Long term debt to working capital, Bad Debts to account receivables ratio, Current liability ratio, Debtors turnover,
Inventory turnover and Operating margin (%), Debt Service Coverage Ratio are not applicable owing to the business model of the
Company.

Net profit margin (%) (refer note 2)

1. Total debts to total assets = Total Debt / Total assets
2.  Net profit margin (%) = Net profit after tax / Total Income
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
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43 Cash flow disclosure

Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars 01 April 2024 Cash flows
Changes in
fair values  Others* 31 March 2025

 Borrowings                     16,272.92                      (16,156.31)                            -                     (26.77)                             89.84 
Total liabilities from financing activities 16,272.92 (16,156.31) - (26.77) 89.84

* Others Includes interest accrued but not paid on financing liabilities.

Particulars 01 April 2023 Cash flows
Changes in
fair values  Others* 31 March 2024

 Borrowings                       5,782.80                        10,435.04                            -                       55.08                     16,272.92 
Total liabilities from financing activities 5,782.80 10,435.04 -                        55.08                   16,272.92 

* Others Includes interest accrued but not paid on financing liabilities.
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44 Prior period comparatives

Previous year's figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to conform to current year's presentation 
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